



STATE OF ARKANSAS
House of Representatives

NINETY-THIRD GENERAL ASSEMBLY
STATE CAPITOL
500 WOODLANE STREET, SUITE 350
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72201-1089
(501) 682-7771

MATTHEW J. SHEPHERD, SPEAKER

November 2, 2021

Mr. Clark B. Smith
221 Fawnwood Circle
El Dorado, Arkansas 71730
(870) 866.6028
clark.smith@martinmlp.com

Dear Mr. Smith:

In accordance with the provisions of Arkansas Constitution, Article 19, Section 31, (copy enclosed) I am, hereby, appointing you to the Independent Citizens Commission, to fill the vacancy created by the resignation of Mr. Nathan Evers. Your term will expire January 23, 2023.

I appreciate your willingness to serve. If for any reason you are unable to accept my appointment, please notify me or Amber Pool, Assistant Coordinator/Assistant to the Speaker.

Sincerely,

Matthew J. Shepherd
Speaker of the House

cc: The Honorable Asa Hutchinson, Governor of Arkansas
The Honorable John Thurston, Secretary of State
The Honorable Jimmy Hickey, Jr., President Pro Tempore of the Senate
Chuck Banks, Chairman, Independent Citizens Commission
Roy Ragland, Chief of Staff, House of Representatives
Cecillea Pond-Mayo, Chief Communications Officer, House of Representatives
Ann Cornwell, Director/Secretary, Arkansas Senate
Lindsey Mathis, Director, Boards and Commission, Office of the Governor

Ark. Const. Art. 19, § 31

Current through all acts of the 2021 Regular Session and the First Extraordinary Session, including corrections and edits by the Arkansas Code Revision Commission

AR - Arkansas Constitution > Constitution Of The State Of Arkansas Of 1874 > Article 19 Miscellaneous Provisions

§ 31. Independent citizens commission.

(a) As provided in this section, members of the General Assembly shall have no authority to set salaries for:

- (1) Their positions as members of the General Assembly;
- (2) Elected constitutional officers of the executive department;
- (3) Justices;
- (4) Judges; and
- (5) Prosecuting attorneys.

(b)

(1) There is created an independent citizens commission for the purpose of setting salaries of elected constitutional officers of the executive department, members of the General Assembly, justices, judges, and prosecuting attorneys as provided in this section.

(2)

(A) Each member of the independent citizens commission shall serve a term of four (4) years.

(B) A person shall not serve more than two (2) terms on the independent citizens commission.

(3) The independent citizens commission shall consist of seven (7) members as follows:

- (A) Two (2) members appointed by the Governor;
- (B) Two (2) members appointed by the President Pro Tempore of the Senate;
- (C) Two (2) members appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives; and
- (D) One (1) member appointed by the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court.

(4) Vacancies on the independent citizens commission shall be filled in the manner of the original appointment.

(5) The independent citizens commission shall elect from its membership:

- (A) A chair; and
- (B) Other officers deemed necessary by the independent citizens commission.

(6) Four (4) members of the independent citizens commission shall constitute a quorum for the purpose of transacting business.

(7) A majority vote of the total membership of the independent citizens commission is required for any action of the independent citizens commission.

(8) The office of the Auditor of State shall provide staff assistance as may be requested by the independent citizens commission.

(c)

(1) In making appointments to the independent citizens commission, the Governor, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court shall consider racial, gender, and geographical diversity.

(2) A member of the independent citizens commission shall be:

(A) A citizen of the United States;

(B) A resident of the State of Arkansas for at least two (2) years preceding his or her appointment;

(C) A qualified elector; and

(D) At least twenty-five (25) years of age.

(3) The following persons shall not serve on the independent citizens commission:

(A) A person holding civil office;

(B) An employee of the State of Arkansas;

(C) A person required by law to register as a lobbyist; or

(D)

(i) An immediate family member of:

(a) A person holding civil office;

(b) An employee of the State of Arkansas; or

(c) A person required by law to register as a lobbyist.

(ii) As used in subdivision (c)(3)(D)(i) of this section, "immediate family member" means a person's spouse, a child of the person or spouse, a child's spouse, a parent of the person or the spouse, a brother or sister of the person or the spouse, anyone living or residing in the same residence or household with the person or the spouse, or anyone acting or serving as an agent of the person.

(d) The independent citizens commission shall have the duty to review and adjust as it deems necessary the salaries for the following positions:

(1) Governor;

(2) Lieutenant Governor;

- (3) Attorney General;
- (4) Secretary of State;
- (5) Treasurer of State;
- (6) Auditor of State;
- (7) Commissioner of State Lands;
- (8) Member of the General Assembly;
- (9) Chief Justice of the Supreme Court;
- (10) Justice of the Supreme Court;
- (11) Chief Judge of the Court of Appeals;
- (12) Judge of the Court of Appeals;
- (13) Circuit court judge;
- (14) District court judge; and
- (15) Prosecuting attorney.

(e)

(1) The salaries of the positions under subsection (d) of this section:

(A) Shall not be subject to appropriation by the General Assembly; and

(B) Shall be paid from the Constitutional Officers Fund or its successor fund or fund accounts in the amount determined by the independent citizens commission.

(2)

(A) If the independent citizens commission proposes to adjust a salary for a position under subsection (d) of this section, the independent citizens commission shall:

(i) Provide notice to the public of the proposed salary adjustment;

(ii) Make available to the public any data reviewed by the independent citizens commission in determining the proposed salary adjustment; and

(iii)

(a) Afford the public a reasonable opportunity to provide public comment on the proposed salary adjustment.

(b)

The opportunity for public comment under subdivision (e)(2)(A)(iii)(a) of this section shall not exceed forty-five (45) days.

(B) A proposed salary adjustment of the independent citizens commission shall not be considered a rule under the Arkansas Administrative Procedure Act, [Arkansas Code § 25-15-201](#) et seq.

(3) Upon satisfying (e)(2)(A)(i)-(iii) of this section, the independent citizens commission may file the adjusted salary with the Auditor of State.

- (4) An adjustment to a salary shall be effective ten (10) days after it is filed with the Auditor of State.
- (5) When considering whether or not to adjust a salary for a position under subsection (d) of this section, the independent citizens commission shall include in its considerations the overall economic condition of the state at that time.
- (f)
- (1)
- (A) The independent citizens commission, by a majority vote of the total membership of the independent citizens commission cast during its first regularly scheduled meeting of each calendar year, may authorize payment to its members of a stipend not to exceed eighty-five dollars (\$85.00) per day for each meeting attended or for any day while performing any proper business of the independent citizens commission.
- (B) Stipends shall be paid by the Auditor of State from funds available for that purpose.
- (2) Members of the independent citizens commission shall receive no other compensation, expense reimbursement, or in-lieu-of payments.
- (g)
- (1) The independent citizens commission shall provide that the salaries of circuit judges be uniform throughout the state.
- (2)
- (A) Except as provided in this subdivision (g)(2), the independent citizens commission may increase or diminish the salaries for the positions under subsection (d) of this section.
- (B) The independent citizens commission may increase but not diminish the salaries for the positions under subdivisions (d)(9)-(14) of this section.
- (3)
- (A) Except as provided in subdivision (g)(3)(B) and subdivision (m)(4)(B) of this section, no single adjustment at any one (1) time to a salary by the independent citizens commission shall exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the salary to be increased or diminished.
- (B) Salary adjustments resulting from the initial review of the independent citizens commission under subdivision (i)(3) of this section shall not be subject to subdivision (g)(3)(A) of this section.
- (4) The independent citizens commission shall provide for salaries to be paid in monthly installments.
- (h) Salaries for the positions under subsection (d) of this section shall continue as existing on November 4, 2014, until adjusted by the independent citizens commission.
- (i)
- (1) Initial members of the independent citizens commission shall be appointed within thirty (30) days of November 5, 2014.

(2) The President Pro Tempore of the Senate shall call the first meeting of the independent citizens commission, which shall occur within forty-five (45) days of November 5, 2014.

(3)

(A) The independent citizens commission:

(i) Shall complete an initial review of the salaries for the positions under subsection (d) of this section no later than ninety (90) days after November 5, 2014; and

(ii) May file any adjustments in salary resulting from the initial review with the Auditor of State upon satisfying (e)(2)(A)(i)-(iii) of this section.

(B) No later than ninety (90) days after November 5, 2014, the independent citizens commission shall also provide recommendations to the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives concerning the amounts to be paid to members of the General Assembly for:

(i) Per diem;

(ii) Reimbursement for expenses; and

(iii) Reimbursement for mileage.

(4)

(A) After completing the initial review under subdivision (i)(3) of this section, the independent citizens commission shall meet as necessary to review the salaries of the positions under subsection (d) of this section but shall not meet less than one (1) time per year.

(B) The independent citizens commission may adjust the salaries of the positions under subsection (d) of this section as provided in this section as it deems necessary.

(j) No later than ninety (90) days before the commencement of a regular session, the independent citizens commission shall provide recommendations to the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives concerning the amounts to be paid to members of the General Assembly for:

(1) Per diem;

(2) Reimbursement for expenses; and

(3) Reimbursement for mileage.

(k) The independent citizens commission shall be subject to the Freedom of Information Act of 1967, [Arkansas Code § 25-19-101](#) et seq.

(l)

(1) The General Assembly, in the same manner as required for amendment of laws initiated by the people, may amend this section, so long as such amendments are germane to this section and consistent with its policy and purposes.

(2)

(A) If an act of the General Assembly amends this section, the Arkansas Code Revision Commission may, by a majority vote of the Arkansas Code Revision Commission, make

the following revisions to the act so long as the revisions do not change the substance or meaning of the act:

- (i) Correct the spelling of words;
- (ii) Change capitalization for the purpose of uniformity;
- (iii) Correct manifest typographical and grammatical errors;
- (iv) Correct manifest errors in references to laws and other documents;
- (v) Correct manifest errors in internal reference numbers;
- (vi) Number, renumber, redesignate, and rearrange this section;
- (vii) Change internal reference numbers to agree with renumbered sections, subsections, subdivisions, or other provisions of law;
- (viii) Insert or delete hyphens in words to follow correct grammatical usage;
- (ix) Change numerals or symbols to words or vice versa and add figures or words if they are merely repetitions of written words or vice versa for purposes of uniformity and style;
- (x) Change the form of nouns, pronouns, and verbs for purposes of style and grammar;
- (xi) Correct punctuation; and
- (xii) Change gender-specific language to gender-neutral language.

(B)

(i) If more than one (1) act amending this section is enacted by the General Assembly during the same session, the Arkansas Code Revision Commission may, by a majority vote of the Arkansas Code Revision Commission, revise this section as necessary so that all of the enactments shall be given effect, including without limitation renumbering, redesignating, and rearranging subsections and subdivisions of this section.

(ii) In the event that one (1) or more acts amending this section result in an irreconcilable conflict with one (1) or more acts amending this section enacted during the same session, the Arkansas Code Revision Commission may, by a majority vote of the Arkansas Code Revision Commission, revise this section so that the conflicting provision of the last enactment prevails.

(3) If the Arkansas Code Revision Commission makes revisions under subdivision (1)(2) of this section, the Arkansas Code Revision Commission shall file a report with the Speaker of the House of Representatives, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, and the Governor that:

- (A) Explains the revisions made under subdivision (1)(2) of this section; and
- (B) Includes the text of this section as amended by the revisions made under subdivision (1)(2) of this section.

(m)

(1) Salaries for the positions under subdivision (d)(15) of this section shall continue as existing on November 4, 2014, until adjusted by the independent citizens commission.

(2) No later than thirty (30) days after March 20, 2015, the *independent citizens commission* shall begin a study of salaries for the positions under subdivision (d)(15) of this section.

(3) The *independent citizens commission* shall complete its review of the salaries for the positions under subdivision (d)(15) of this section no later than thirty (30) days after the date it begins its study under subdivision (m)(2) of this section.

(4)

(A) If at the conclusion of its study under subdivision (m)(2) of this section the *independent citizens commission* determines that a salary revision for the positions under subdivision (d)(15) is appropriate, the *independent citizens commission* shall propose an adjustment under subsection (e) of this section.

(B) Initial salary revisions for the positions under subdivision (d)(15) resulting from the study under subdivision (m)(2) of this section are not subject to subdivision (g)(3)(A) of this section. [As added by Const. Amend. 94; as amended by Acts 2015, No. 559, § 2; 2019, No. 694, § 4.]

Constitution Of The State Of Arkansas Of 1874

© 2021 by the State of Arkansas

All rights reserved.

End of Document